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Watkins, Robert

From: Watkins, Robert
Sent: Thursday, July 21, 2022 10:57 AM
To: gabby@groundedllc.com
Cc: Werner, Jeffrey B
Subject: 07/19 BAR Decision

Certificate of Appropriateness  
BAR 22-07-02 
123 Bollingwood Road, TMP 070022000            
Individually Protected Property 
Owner: Juliana and William Elias 
Applicant: Gabrielle Sabri / Grounded LLC 
Project: Landscaping plan 
 
Dear Gabby, 
  
The above referenced project was discussed before a meeting of the City of Charlottesville Board of Architectural 
Review (BAR) on July 19, 2022. The following action was taken: 
 
Cheri Lewis moves to approve the consent agenda. 
Jody Lahendro seconds motion. Motion passes (5-0). 
 
A Certificate of Appropriateness was approved for your project as a result of it being on the consent agenda. Please also 
find the suggested motion for approval from the staff report: 
 
Having considered the standards set forth within the City Code, including City’s ADC District Design Guidelines, I move 
to find that the proposed landscaping plan for 123 Bollingwood Road satisfies the BAR’s criteria and is compatible with 
this IPP and that the BAR approves the application as submitted. 
 
If you would like to hear the specifics of the discussion, the meeting video is on-line at:  
https://boxcast.tv/channel/vabajtzezuyv3iclkx1a?b=kzdadsfzojpsfftw0pne. 
 
Per the provisions of City Code Sec. 34-280: This CoA is valid for 18 months [from the date of BAR approval]; upon 
written request and for reasonable cause, the director of NDS or the BAR may extend that period by one year; and this 
CoA does not, in and of itself, authorize any work or activity that requires a separate building permit.  
(Complete text of Sec. 34-280: 
https://library.municode.com/va/charlottesville/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=CO_CH34ZO_ARTIIOVDI_DIV2HIPRARDECOOV
DI_S34-280VACEAP) 
  
If you have any questions, please contact me at watkinsro@charlottesville.gov.   
  
Sincerely,  
Robert  
  
Robert Watkins 
Assistant Historic Preservation and Design Planner 
Neighborhood Development Services 
PO Box 911 
Charlottesville, VA 22902 
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City of Charlottesville 
Board of Architectural Review 
Staff Report  
July 19, 2022 
 
Certificate of Appropriateness  
BAR 22-07-02 
123 Bollingwood Road, TMP 070022000  
Individually Protected Property 
Owner: Juliana and William Elias 
Applicant:  
Project: Landscaping plan 
 

  
Background 
Year Built: 1884 
District: IPP 
 
Disney-Keith House, a vernacular farmhouse. Between 1923 and the mid-20th century, Arthur 
Keith’s wife, Ellie Wood Keith, operated a riding academy here. A barn, outbuildings, and stables 
immediately west of the house are no longer standing. The existing garage was constructed in 1988. 
 
Prior BAR Review 
July 19, 1988 – BAR approved CoA for a new detached garage in the rear yard, a rear fence, and 
minor alterations to the main house. 
 
November 2, 1989 – BAR approved CoA for enclosure of the rear porch, with siding, windows, 
shutters and paint color to match existing. 
 
November 16, 2010 – BAR accepted applicant’s request for deferral. (CoA request to modify the 
west elevation: replacing single window with a triple window; replace single window with French 
doors to match doors on east elevation; and construct a painted wood pergola/sunscreen. New 
window and doors to be painted wood, with painted, operable wood shutters.) 
 
September 28, 2020 – Admin approval of roof replacement (in kind). 
 
November 16, 2021 – BAR reviewed the proposed alterations to the west elevation and accepted 
applicant’s request for a deferral (7-0). 
 
May 17, 2022 - BAR approved alterations to west elevation: new sliding door and exterior stoop. 
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Application 
• Applicant submittal: Grounded submittal package for Elias Residence, dated 7/19/2022: Project 

summary; Materials; Existing Conditions (2 sheets); Existing Conditions: Contiguous 
Properties; Topo survey (Roger Ray & Assoc.); and Site Plan L1.00.   

 
Request CoA for landscaping plan, which includes:   
• Site grading to provide positive drainage. Removal of the grading fill that had been a previous 

horse-riding ring. 
• Removal of the rear portion of the driveway and asphalt adjacent to the existing garage. 
• Removal of the existing brick patio at the rear of the residence. 
• One Maple tree in poor condition has previously been removed by the homeowners due to 

disease. Several trees to be removed are noted on the landscape plan; none are mature or 
significant in nature. 

• Addition of a bluestone stepper front walkway. 
• Addition of a 13' x 7' pool with 18" bluestone seat wall coping. 
• Addition of a mortared bluestone patio between house and pool. 
• Addition of complementary planting beds in the patio and pool area. Trees and shrubs to comply 

with the Charlottesville Master Tree List. 
• No additional exterior lighting. 
 
Discussion and Recommendations 
Staff recommends approval. 
 
Suggested Motion 
Approval: Having considered the standards set forth within the City Code, including City’s ADC 
District Design Guidelines, I move to find that the proposed landscaping plan for 123 Bollingwood 
Road satisfies the BAR’s criteria and is compatible with this IPP and that the BAR approves the 
application [as submitted]. 
 

[…as submitted with the following conditions: …] 
 
Denial: Having considered the standards set forth within the City Code, including City’s ADC 
District Design Guidelines, I move to find that the proposed landscaping plan for 123 Bollingwood 
Road does not satisfy the BAR’s criteria and is not compatible with this IPP, and that for the 
following reasons the BAR denies the application as submitted: 
 
Criteria, Standards, and Guidelines 
Review Criteria Generally 
Sec. 34-284(b) of the City Code states that, in considering a particular application the BAR shall 
approve the application unless it finds: 
(1) That the proposal does not meet specific standards set forth within this division or applicable 

provisions of the Design Guidelines established by the board pursuant to Sec.34-288(6); and 
(2) The proposal is incompatible with the historic, cultural or architectural character of the district 

in which the property is located or the protected property that is the subject of the application. 
 
Pertinent Standards for Review of Construction and Alterations include: 
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(1) Whether the material, texture, color, height, scale, mass and placement of the proposed addition, 
modification or construction are visually and architecturally compatible with the site and the 
applicable design control district; 

(2) The harmony of the proposed change in terms of overall proportion and the size and placement 
of entrances, windows, awnings, exterior stairs and signs; 

(3) The Secretary of the Interior Standards for Rehabilitation set forth within the Code of Federal 
Regulations (36 C.F.R. §67.7(b)), as may be relevant; 

(4) The effect of the proposed change on the historic district neighborhood;  
(5) The impact of the proposed change on other protected features on the property, such as gardens, 

landscaping, fences, walls and walks; 
(6) Whether the proposed method of construction, renovation or restoration could have an adverse 

impact on the structure or site, or adjacent buildings or structures; 
(7) Any applicable provisions of the City’s Design Guidelines. 
 
Pertinent ADC District Design Guidelines 
Chapter 2 Site Design and Elements Chapter 2 Site Design and Elements 

https://protect-us.mimecast.com/s/By1pCn5YG7f7jg95UEYzQk?domain=weblink.charlottesville.org








ADC District or IPP 

Note: No submittal deadline 
for Admin Review 

Staff email: wernerjb@charlottesville.gov
watkinsro@charlottesville.gov 

William Elias and Juliana Bueno

Please submit the signed application form and a digital copy of submittal and attachments (via email or thumb drive). 

No 

123 Bollingwood  Road, Charlottesville, Va. 22903 

070022000 Landscaping 

123 Bollingwood  Road 

Staff contacts: 
Jeff Werner  wernerjb@charlottesville.gov  
Robert Watkins  watkinsro@charlottesville.gov 

ADC Districts and IPPs 

Gabrielle Sabri / Grounded LLC

Secretarys Sand Road 
Esmont, Va 22937 
434.249.7779 <Gabby@Groundedllc.Com> 

See separate narrative for proposed demolition, preservation, and site additions

Project narrative, Proposed materials, Existing conditions, Site Survey, Site Plan

6/14/22

Gabrielle Sabri 6/14/22

           Jeff Elias 6-14-2022

W. Jeff Elias 6-14-2022



charlottesville.gov 

charlottesville.gov 

CHARLOTTESVILLE ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN CONTROL DISTRICTS DESIGN GUIDELINES  
 
Chapter 1 Introduction (Part 1) 
http://weblink.charlottesville.org/public/0/edoc/793062/2_Introduction%20I_BAR.pdf 
 
Chapter 1 Introduction (Part 2) 
http://weblink.charlottesville.org/public/0/edoc/793063/1_Introduction%20II_BAR.pdf 
 
Chapter 2 Site Design and Elements 
http://weblink.charlottesville.org/public/0/edoc/793064/3_Chapter%20II%20Site%20Design%20and%20Elements_BAR.pdf 
 
Chapter 3 New Construction and Additions 
http://weblink.charlottesville.org/public/0/edoc/793065/4_Chapter%20III%20New%20Construction%20and%20Additions_BAR.pdf 
 
Chapter 4 Rehabilitation 
http://weblink.charlottesville.org/public/0/edoc/793066/5_Chapter%20IV%20Rehabilitation_BAR.pdf 
 
Chapter 5 Signs, Awnings, Vending, and Cafes 
http://weblink.charlottesville.org/public/0/edoc/793067/6_Chapter%20V%20Signs%20Awnings%20Vending%20and%20Cafes_BAR.pdf 
 
Chapter 6 Public Improvements 
http://weblink.charlottesville.org/public/0/edoc/793068/7_Chapter%20VI%20Public%20Improvements_BAR.pdf 
 
Chapter 7 Moving and Demolition 
http://weblink.charlottesville.org/public/0/edoc/793069/8_Chapter%20VII%20Moving%20and%20Demolition_BAR.pdf 
 
 



P ROJ EC T S U M M A RY

Please see the 123 Bollingwood Road architecture CoA submittal for BAR 
meeting dated May 17, 2022 for architectural renovations associated with 
this project.

The site changes are as follows:

• 	 Site grading to provide positive drainage. Removal of the grading fil l 
that had been a previous horse riding ring.

• 	 Removal of the rear portion of the driveway and asphalt adjacent to the 
existing garage.

• 	 Removal of the existing brick patio at the rear of the residence.
• 	 One Maple tree in poor condition has previously been removed by the 

homeowners due to disease. Several trees to be removed are noted on 
the landscape plan; none are mature or significant in nature.

• 	 Addition of a bluestone stepper front walkway.
• 	 Addition of a 13'X7' pool with 18" bluestone seatwall coping.
• 	 Addition of a mortared bluestone patio between house and pool.
• 	 Addition of complementary planting beds in the patio and pool area. 

Trees and shrubs to comply with the Charlottesville Master Tree List.
• 	 No additional exterior l ighting.
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